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18th century 

The earliest part of Great Neck is a small one 
story brick section.that now serves as a wing to a 
large, late 18th century side hall single parlor house 

·to the west. The glazed header Flemish bond brickwork 
of this early building suggests it may date to: the 
first half of the 18th century, but unfortunately no 
other dating evidence can be found. The larger house 
to the west probably dates to the last quarter of the 
18th century. The most significant feature of this 
part of the house is the handsome walnut and pine 
stair. Particular details of this stair include a 
molded walnut rail, scrolled walnut stair brackets 
applied against a pine carriage, a molded half-rail 
and newels against the gable wall, and carefully 
reeded walnut newel posts similar to those at Morgan's 
Enclosure (QA-169). 
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Great Neck is located on the east side of 

Maryland Route 8 on Kent Island, approximately two 

miles south of Stevensville. The house is sited · 

on the north side of Warehous~ Creek, facing south. 

The low area immediately adjacent to the house on 

the west is believed to be the site of Blunt's 

Warehouse, an 18th century tobacco inspection site 

(see QA-302). 

The sequence of construction at Great Neck 

is relatively complex, but can be reconstructed 

to some extent using two early photographs of 

the house that pre-date a major restoration/ 

renovation undertaken in the mid-20th century. 

The earliest known photograph of Great Neck 

was published in 1934 by Henry Chandlee Forman. 

(Early Manor and Plantation Houses, p. 214). 

At the time Forman recorded the building, it was 

composed of three distinct sections. The 

earliest, according to Forman, is a l 1/2 story 

frame section with a catslide roof. To the west 

of this is a small 1 1/2 story brick section with 

a gambrel roof that appears to be altered. from an 

earlier pitched roof. Adjoining this section on 
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The earliest part of Great Neck is a small one 

story brick section that now serves as a wing to 

a large, late 18th century side hall single 

parlor house to the west. The glazed header 

Flemish bond brickwork of this early building 

suggests it may date to the first half of the 18th 

century, but unfortunately no other dating evidence 

can be found. The larger house to the west 

probably dates to the last quarter of the 18th 

century. The most 8ighific~nt fe•t~re bf this 

part of the house is the handsome walnut and pine 

stair. Particular details of this stair include 

a moldedr walnut rail,··· scrolled walnut, stair, 

brackets applied against a pine carriage, a molded 

half-rail and newels against the gable wall, and 

carefully reeded walnut newel posts similar 

to those at Morgan's Enclosure (QA-169}. 
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the west is a large 2 1/2 story brick house with a side 

hall, single parlor plan. Forman dates the frame section 

to the 17th century, does not place a date on the 

middle part, and dates the west building to the 18th 

century. As the frame building was demolished soon 

thereafter, it is impossible to determine the accuracy 

of either the sequence or the attributed 17th century 

date. The exterior appearance, in particular the 

exposed chimney back, are features more commonly 

associated with the latter half of the 18th and the early 

19th century, however. Regardless, the small brick 

section is the earliest surviving part of the building. 

The most interesting feature of this building is the 

•tumbling-in" decorative brickwork visible in the east 

gable. This suggests that an earlier oitched roof was 

raised to a gambrel. The large brick section to the 

west is believed to date to the last quarter of the 

18th century, and shares much in common with Morgan's 

Enclosure at nearby Romancoke (QA-169~. 

A second photograph, taken later in the l930's, 

has been locatP-d in the Francis BenjaMin Johnston 

collection at the Baltimore Museum of Art. From this 

photograph it would appear that the upper gable of the 
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middle section has been rebuilt, and the frame wing has 

been demolished and replaced with a smaller frame 

gambrel roof wing. These changes probably occurred 

circa 1936. 

Further renovations after World War II included 

raising the center section to two full stories and 

replacing the frame wing with a two story addition 

that includes a garage. 

The north facade of the main house is laid in 

Flemish bond above a plain water table and a three­

course bond foundation. A two-course belt course is 

carried across the facade but does not extend to the 

corners. The water table turns the corner on the 

west gable, but stops flush with the east corner, 

adjoining the earlier brick "wing''. The entrance 

door is located in the east bay on the first floor 

with two large 6/6 windows to the right and three 

6/6 windows on the second floor. There are three 

6/6 pitched roof dormers on the third floor. The 

door is embellished with paneled soffit and jambs, 

a four-light transom, and a 20th century surround. 

A one story entrance porch in the early photographs 

has been removed. 
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The west gable wall is laid in three-course bond 

above a plain water table and a three-course bond 

foundation. Large 6/6 windows flank the flush gable 

chimney on the first and second floors and a pair of 

four-light windows are similarly positioned in the 

upper gable. A bulkhead cellar entrance is located 

to the right of the chimney at ground level. The 

rakeboards are 20th century, and flare out at the 

base to cover the end soffit of the cornice. 

The brickwork and fenestration on the south 

facade, facing the creek, match the north facade 

except that the east bay is offset slightly on all 

three floors to accommodate the stair. The door 

is fitted with a 20th century surround with reeded 

pilasters. There is no transom, but this may be due 

to an alteration. The eaves are finished with a deep 

box cornice, a complex crown mold and a small bed 

mold. 

The majority of the east gable is covered by the 

raised two story wing. The exposed brickwork is 

three-course bond. A pair of four-light windows flank 

the chimney. 

Only the front and rear walls of the early one 
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story brick section remain visible. The south facade 

is laid in glazed header Flemish bond above a beveled 

water table. A large 6/6 window in the center bay 

is the only opening. On the north facade the brick­

work is glazed header Flemish above a plain water 

table. The 6/6 window in the center bay shows evidence 

of reworked jambs, but the original treatment is not 

clear. One detail of interest is the manner in which 

this early section is joined to the larger, late 18th 

century house. The original brickwork stops 12-15 

inches from the seam and is continued with later work. 

There are no closers to suggest an earlier corner, 

raising the possibility that the surviving building 

is part of a larger 1 1/2 story house, the west end of 

which collapsed or was demolished before the later 

house was added. 

The interior of the main house consists of a 

side hall, single parlor plan with the stair hall 

at the east end of the building. The stair rises 

against the east wall to a landing on the south facade. 

It is an open-string stair with a molded rail and 

square ballusters. The square walnut newels are 

reeded on each face, quite similar to the newels at 
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Morgan's Enclosure (QA-169). A half-rail and newels 

are carried up the other side of the stair, against the 

wall. A single large fielded pine panel fills the area 

below the carriage, which is decorated with solid 

scrolled stair brackets of walnut, which contrasts 

with the pine carriage piece. A six-panel door under 

the landing opens onto the cellar stairs. A door in 

the east wall of the hall at the foot of the main 

stairway leads down four steps into the wing. Handsome 

paneled exterior doors at opposing ends of the hall 

are hung on modern H-L hinges. A six-panel door in 

the west partition wall opens into the parlor. The 

Federal mantel in this room was brought from New 

England and installed by a previous owner in the 1930's. 

Decorative details in the parlor include the paneled 

soffit and jambs of the door to the hall, splayed but 

unpaneled window jambs, and architrave trim composed 

of a wide beaded fascia board with a bold ogee back­

band. 

The stairhall in the second floor has been modified 

to allow a bath and closet. There is a large chamber 

to the west, over the parlor. The mantel inthis room 

is not early; the architrave trim is plain. The third 
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floor was completely renovated in the 1930's. There is 

no access to the roof. 

The first floor plan is repeated in the cellar. 

The floor joists are laid parallel to the gable walls, 

with continuous flooring battens notched into the top 

face of the joists, similar to the floor at Trumpington 

in Kent County (K-271). An arched chimney base is 

centered on the west gable wall. There are cellar 

windows in all three bays on each facade. Two retain 

early wood frames with diamond-section horizontal bars. 

The first floor of the adjoining brick wing now 

serves as a dining room. The mantel on the east wall 

of this room was moved from the parlor in the 1930's, 

replacing a Victorian mantel which was moved to the 

second floor. This mantel is typical of the second 

quarter of the 19th century, with paneled pilasters 

and side blocks, a pair of panels in the frieze 

flanking a narrow center block. The molded complex 

shelf is dominated by Greek ogees. A two-piece chairrail 

was salvaged from a now demolished house near Stevens­

ville. 
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QA-164 Great Neck 
Stevensville vicinity 
Orlando Ridout V 1980 
South facade 
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Orlando Ridout V 1980 
North facade 
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West parlor 
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Interior stair 
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